

## Western Resource Adequacy Program RAPC Meeting

April 27, 2023; 10am-12pm PPT

Participant	Name	Participant	Name
APS	Brian Cole	PacifiCorp	Mike Wilding
Avista	Kevin Holland	PGE	Dee Outama
BPA	Suzanne Cooper	Powerex	Mike Goodenough
Calpine	Bill Goddard	PSE	Tricia Fischer
Chelan	Shawn Smith	PNM	Kelsey Martinez
Clatskanie	Chris Roden	SRP	Grant Smedley
EWEB	John Crider	SCL	Emeka Anyanwu
Grant	Rich Flanigan	Shell	lan White
Idaho	Ben Brandt	Snohomish PUD	Jeff Kallstrom
NorthWestern	Joe Stimatz	Tacoma	Ray Johnson
NV Energy	Lindsey Schlekeway	TEA	Ed Mount

Objectives

- 1. Provide the RAPC with updates on project progress
- 2. Seek RAPC input on progress and any administrative actions

## Meeting Agenda

Call to Or	der
10:00	<ol> <li>Attendance</li> <li>Anti-trust Statement</li> <li>Agenda Overview         <ul> <li>Avista moves and Shell seconds to approve the agenda. In discussion, PSE moves and SRP seconds to add agenda item regarding the creation of a subgroup to discuss using WRAP metrics for long-term planning processes (no objections). Amended agenda unanimously approved at 10:10.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Approve Minutes from last meeting         <ul> <li>NV Energy moves and Chelan seconds to approve the minutes. Minutes approved unanimously at 10:11.</li> </ul> </li> </ol>
PA/PO Re	
10:12	<ul> <li>5. PA Update <ul> <li>Interim RA Program – Summer 2023</li> <li>Work order &amp; instructions out next week to participate in Interim RA Program for summer 2023. Non-binding ops program starts next winter, so this will likely be the last season of the Interim Program.</li> </ul> </li> <li>6. PO Update <ul> <li>PO update in a few weeks.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Ongoing I	Business
10:15	<ul> <li>7. Workgroup Updates</li> <li>o Forward Showing Workgroup</li> </ul>



April 27, 2023; 10am-12pm PPT

	<i>Proposal to come regarding when JCAF is required. BPM 105 to come early next week.</i>
	<ul> <li>Operations Workgroup</li> </ul>
	Registration complete, approaching connectivity testing. Discussion of validation
	and verification of delivery points in desert southwest and eastern side of footprint
	next week. BPM 201 feedback review underway, updated version to be circulated
	in future.
	<ul> <li>Storage Hydro User group</li> </ul>
	Pending charter. Ongoing discussion over how to submit forced outages.
	<ul> <li>Transmission Subregion Connectivity</li> </ul>
	Ongoing discussion over model assumptions for Summer 2025.
	o MBR Workgroup
	Meet later today, more to report later. Timing and next steps of participant filings
	to discuss. Update on discussion with FERC.
	8. RAPC Charter Approval
	Updated charter includes requirement to send materials at least one meeting prior
10:32	to vote. Mike Wilding (PAC) is appointed as chair and Grant Smedley (SRP) as co-
10.52	chair. Chelan moves and PGE seconds to approve with changes. In discussion, TEA
	moves and BPA seconds a request to move the record of chair and vice chair to
	Appendix A. Amended Charter is approved unanimously at 10:39
	9. Budget Updates
	<ul> <li>2023 Q1 Budget Report – in the works</li> </ul>
	Template accurate through February, more to come. Will follow up at the quarter
	closes. In discussion, PacifiCorp and Idaho support forecast addition to template.
	<ul> <li>FY23-24 Budget Forecast, 3-Year Budget Forecast</li> </ul>
10:40	Additional implementation costs decrease after 2025. 3-year forecast amounts are
	consistently under max tariff amount. Budget currently aligns with WPP fiscal year
	(July – June annually). TEA suggests the addition of max tariff rates for reference.
	2023-2024 budget will be presented to the WPP board in May.
	Updated budget forecast document will be provided next RAPC meeting for
	further discussion.
New Busir	
	10. Uncertainty – Ops Program
	Next steps to develop proposal with RAPC or delegate a subset of members to a WG.
	Pacificorp, SRP, Idaho, NV Energy, BPA, Powerex, PGE, TEA, PSE, Calpine volunteer to
10:55	participate in a WG.
	11. Safety Margin – Ops Program
	Potential tariff change to address safety margin. Materials to be sent out for future
	RAPC discussion, as time allows.
	12. Sub-group for long-term planning



April 27, 2023; 10am-12pm PPT

	<i>PSE discusses interest in generating a subgroup for long-term planning. Note to be sent gauging interest and discussing scope. EWEB and Avista voice support for further discussion. PSE will send out an email with further information.</i>
External A	\ffairs
	[None]
Good of t	he Order
11:13	13. Participant topics requests for next meeting <i>APS requests discussion of subregion connectivity modeling assumptions beyond</i> <i>Summer 2025 study assumptions (the focus of the current connectivity task force).</i>
Closed RA	APC
11:17	14. Closed RAPC Meeting
Upcoming	]
12:00	15. Next meeting: May 11
Seattle m	oves and Calpine seconds to adjourn the meeting at 12:01

Current Participants: APS, Avista; BPA; Calpine; Chelan; Clatskanie; EWEB; Grant; Idaho Power; NorthWestern; NV Energy; PacifiCorp; PGE; Powerex; PNM; PSE; SRP; SCL; Shell; Snohomish PUD; Tacoma Power, The Energy Authority

WPP forums will not foster or allow communications or practices that violate antitrust laws. Please avoid discussion of topics that would result in anti-competitive behavior, including but not limited to: availability of or terms of services and sales, design of products, price setting, or any other activity that might unreasonably restrain competition.



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

## 1 Revision History

Description	Revised by	Date

## 2 Purpose

The Resource Adequacy Participants Committee (RAPC) is the highest level of stakeholder influence over WRAP design changes and the venue for participant engagement with the Program Administrator (PA) and Program Operator (PO) on program implementation and operations. The authority of the RAPC is governed by the WRAP Tariff. The RAPC deliberates on proposed WRAP Tariff and business practice changes and recommends to the WPP Board of Directors ("Board") approval or rejection of proposals. The RAPC also has certain reserved authorities, such as deciding whether to modify the limitations on Board authority set forth in Section 3 of the WRAP Tariff, as well as authority to make recommendations to the Board regarding WRAP cost allocation, changes to the WRAPA, and certain other requirements.

## 3 Participation

The RAPC consists of one representative from each WRAP Participant that executes the Western Resource Adequacy Program Agreement ("WRAPA") under the WRAP Tariff. Representatives must be senior management officials with binding decision-making authority on behalf of their participating organizations, or a designated representative of a Participant's senior management official. New participants joining the WRAP will designate a RAPC representative to attend RAPC meetings as soon as the company executes a WRAPA; these designees will be recorded in the RAPC Contact List.



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

## Identification of Committee Members.

Notices of RAPC representatives and contact information shall be submitted to WPP. A list of each representative and their contact information shall be maintained on the RAPC Contact List. Participants can designate additional individuals to receive RAPC meeting materials, SharePoint access, and meeting invitations – designated as 'informational.' Individuals identified as informational are eligible to stand in for RAPC representatives when the representative is unavailable (for speaking or voting on behalf of the organization). If an entity ceases to be a Participant, that entity's previously appointed representative and alternate shall no longer be on RAPC.

## 3.1 Code of Conduct

RAPC representatives will strive to represent their organizations while working in the best interest of the region. A spirit of collaboration will govern discussions, and the RAPC will strive to manage cordially through conflicts and differences of opinion. Consistent attendance and engagement at RAPC meetings by the identified primary RAPC representative are critical.

#### 3.1.1 Meeting Roles

The primary RAPC representative or an alternate from the RAPC Contact List will be the speaker for their organization at each meeting (i.e., there will be one designated speaker per organization). As with any member of the public, staff from participating organizations are permitted to attend RAPC meetings in listening mode. The chair and/or vice chair may decide to promote another staff member from an organization at the request of the primary representative from that organization for a specific agenda topic.

If a caller on any meeting of the RAPC or any organizational group under the RAPC is causing a lot of background noise or distraction and is unresponsive to requests to mute, the chair and/or vice chair may request that WPP excuse the caller.

#### 3.1.2 Devotion of Time

It is the expectation that the RAPC representative and any alternate will devote the appropriate time to ensure that themself and any invited staff members are adequately informed to participate in discussions by familiarizing themselves with the agenda and accompanying materials circulated prior to meetings of the RAPC or any organizational group under the RAPC. The RAPC representative is also expected to keep senior and management staff at their own organization informed to ensure no timing delays in decision making and voting. Participation of representatives



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

is at the expense of their member organizations, and representatives shall not receive compensation or reimbursement of expenses from WPP.

## 3.1.3 Confidentiality

Any confidential information is to be treated in accordance with the WRAP Tariff and applicable confidentiality agreements. Occasionally, the RAPC may need to host closed discussions, as noted in section 6.1.3 below. Participants shall maintain the confidentiality of a closed session including not disclosing comments made by or positions taken by RAPC members.

## 4 Resources

## 4.1 Program Administrator

WPP will provide management, facilitation, and facilitation support as the Public Utility administering the WRAP to the RAPC and organizational groups beneath the RAPC, as appropriate. WPP will work collaboratively with the chair and vice chair to create agendas to keep the effort on schedule and to coordinate support from other resources. WPP will provide and maintain a SharePoint site for use by the committee.

## 4.2 Program Operator

The Program Operator (Southwest Power Pool – SPP) will provide technical support to the RAPC and organizational groups beneath the RAPC, as appropriate. SPP will work collaboratively with WPP and the chair and vice chair to prepare for meetings, develop materials, lead discussions, and provide other support as determined necessary by WPP.

## 5 Function

The RAPC will perform functions defined under the WRAP Tariff, which include:

- Shall consider and recommend that the Board approve or reject proposed amendments to this Tariff or Business Practice Manuals prior to the Board considering such amendments, including any amendments reviewed and referred by the Program Review Committee.
- May provide input to the Board on any proposed WPP rules that apply both to the WRAP and other WPP services
- May take other actions reasonably related to its role as the senior level Participant advisory committee to the Board of Directors regarding WRAP matters.

#### 5.1.1 Exigent Changes

When the RAPC determines that an amendment to the Tariff or the Business Practice Manuals requires expedited Board of Directors review due to exigent circumstances, it may propose such amendment directly to the Board of Directors without awaiting review by other committees and



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

stakeholders. Exigent circumstances include: (i) a FERC-mandated amendment to this Tariff or the Business Practice Manuals; (ii) an amendment to this Tariff or the Business Practice Manuals to address an immediate reliability impact; or (iii) an amendment to this Tariff or the Business Practice Manuals that the RAPC has determined has significant impacts to utility service.

## 6 Procedures

## 6.1 Meetings

Meetings of the RAPC will generally be open to the public. All RAPC decisional items shall be placed on the open meeting agenda. Members of the public will be given the opportunity to provide comments on decisional items. Voting will be conducted in open session.

### 6.1.1 Quorum

The quorum for a meeting of the RAPC shall be one-half of the representatives thereof, but not less than three representatives, provided that a lesser number may serve as a quorum for the sole purpose of voting to adjourn the meeting to a later time.

## 6.1.2 Noticing Meetings

WPP shall provide advanced written notice of the date, time, place, and purpose of each RAPC meeting. Meetings will be noticed no less than 10 business days prior to the meeting on the WPP website.

## 6.1.3 Closed Meetings

The RAPC may meet in closed session as the RAPC chair and vice chair deems necessary; provided, however, that the RAPC will allow the designated COSR support staff member as specified in Section 4.3 of this Tariff to attend any closed meeting. The RAPC will not take action on any proposed amendment to this Tariff or the Business Practice Manuals in closed session. Given the confidential and business sensitive nature of the discussions in closed session, no more than two representatives will be allowed to attend for each Participant, unless the RAPC chair and vice chair otherwise authorize more attendees. One attendee will be the Participant's RAPC representative and one additional attendee may be designated by the RAPC representative.

## 6.1.4 Setting the Agenda

The chair and vice chair will propose agendas for the meetings, working with WPP support. If RAPC representatives would like to request an item be added to the agenda for the next meeting, they are expected to do so prior to adjourning the prior meeting or via email to WPP and the RAPC chair and vice chair at least 5 business days prior to the RAPC meeting they are requesting the topic be added.



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

The agenda for a given meeting will be proposed to the RAPC with a motion and second at the start of a meeting; RAPC representatives may request an adjustment or addition to the agenda in the course of its consideration by the RAPC for adoption. RAPC representatives are encouraged to provide decisional agenda items in advance for incorporation into the proposed agenda (as opposed to proposing them within the meeting) to allow colleagues and attendees an opportunity to adequately prepare for a decision.

#### Supplying Meetings Materials

WPP will make reasonable efforts to provide meeting materials to the meeting attendees at least 4 business days prior to the meeting. For items requiring a decision or vote, supporting materials must be provided at least 4 business days in advance. Informational items may be provided within 4 business days of the meeting if they do not require a vote or decision. WPP, the chair, and vice chair will endeavor to provide material for any decisional items for consideration at least one meeting prior to the meeting where a decision will be requested. Proposed agendas for open RAPC meeting sessions will be posted to WPP's website with the notice of the meeting.

#### 6.1.5 Meeting Minutes

WPP will provide meeting minutes for open RAPC meetings focused on capturing motions/approvals, actions, timing, and general discussion topics. For closed meetings, minutes will capture timing of the meeting.

## 6.2 Chair and Vice Chair

The RAPC shall select from among its members a chair and vice chair. The chair and/or vice chair will serve as the RAPC liaison to the WPP staff and will help facilitate RAPC meetings, develop meeting agendas, and ensure that objectives and deliverables are achieved in a timely manner, as appropriate. During the course of RAPC discussions and debates, it is recognized that the chairs and/or vice chair will sometimes need to represent views or considerations particular to their organization. Whenever a chair or vice chair is expressing his/her/their particular views or considerations he/she/they will so note this to the RAPC.

#### 6.2.1 Terms

The officer terms are for one year. After one year of service, the chair will step down and the vice chair will become the new chair. The RAPC will elect a new vice chair.

An officer may be removed by 75% 'House/Senate' (see section **Voting**) of the RAPC if it is decided that removal will serve the best interests of the RAPC. Any officer may resign from the position at any time by giving written notice to the RAPC. Any resignation shall take effect on the date and



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

time specified by that notice; the acceptance of the resignation is not necessary to make it effective. The resignation of a position as officer does not itself remove that representative from the RAPC. Vacancies in any office arising from any cause shall be filled by a RAPC representative at the next meeting by a majority vote of the representatives. The newly appointed officer will complete the vacancy term.

Record of the Chair and Vice Chair will be recorded in Appendix A when the RAPC has voted affirmatively to seat a new chair and/or vice chair.

#### 6.3 Voting

The RAPC will strive for and will act on the consensus of its members, where consensus means that all participants can "live with" the decision. In the event consensus cannot be obtained, voting procedures will be utilized.

When votes are necessary, each Participant will cast a single vote; votes must be cast by an individual previously identified in the RAPC Contact List as either the RAPC representative or an alternate. If an action is proposed and roll call voting is not determined necessary (i.e., no request for a roll call vote is made), an entity will be considered supportive of the action if any individual listed in the RAPC Contact List is present in the meeting at the time of the action.

RAPC votes are governed by the WRAP Tariff. RAPC actions are determined based on a "House/Senate" voting structure. The Senate vote will be based on a one-Participant, one-vote (per capita) structure, and the House vote will be weighted based on each Participant's share of total WRAP average peak load, as determined in the Forward Showing Program for each Season.

- Actions to amend any of the limitations on Board authority set forth in Section 3.4 of this Tariff require an 80% affirmative approval by both the House and the Senate vote tallies to be approved.
- Actions brought before the RAPC that have been approved by the PRC require a 67% affirmative approval by both the House and Senate vote tallies to be approved.
- All other actions not specified in Tariff Section 4.1.6.2.3 require a 75% affirmative approval by both the House and Senate vote tallies to be approved.

If at any time a single Participant's P50 load for voting purposes would result in that Participant possessing a veto over any votes, such Participant's House vote shall be capped at 1% below the amount that would convey such a veto, such that no single Participant will possess a veto over any action.



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

## 7 Organizational Groups Under the RAPC

RAPC may organize groups under its responsibilities such as workgroups, subcommittees, task forces, etc. to address specific topics. These groups may be enduring or situational. RAPC will not delegate any voting or decisional power to these organizational sub-groups; instead, such groups will exist to advise RAPC, make proposals, consider issues, etc.



Western Resource Adequacy Program (WRAP)

April 17, 2023

#### Appendix A: Record of Chair and Vice Chair

Role	Name	Start Date	End Date	Organization
Chair	Michael Wilding	1-26-2023		PacifiCorp
Vice Chair	Grant Smedley	1-26-2023		Salt River Project